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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

- 06-01030 M (SSx)
GARRETT HAUENSTEIN and JEAN ) Case No. '
TAYLOR, as individually and on behalf )

of a class of those similarly situated, y NOTICE OF REMOVAL
Plaintiffs,

Vs.

JAMES FREY, BIG JIM INDUSTRIES,
INC., RANDOM HOUSE, INC,,
DOUBLEDAY & COMPANY, INC.,,
and Does 1-50, inclusive,

Defendants.
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N OTICE OF REMOVAL

Pmsuant to 28 U S.C. §§ 1332 and 1446 as amended in relevant part by
the Class Action Faimeéss Act of 2005, defendants Doublcday & Company, Inc.
(“Doubleday’) and Random House, Inc. (“Random House’ e”) (collectively -
“Defendants”) hereby remove to this Court the above-styled action, pending as Case
No. BC346567 in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los
Angeles (“the State Court Action’ ). As grounds for removal, Defendants states as
follows:

Factual Background

. OnJanuary 27, 2006, Plaintiffs Garrett Hauenstein and Jean Taylor
(collecnvcly “Plaintiffs”) filed the State Court Action in the Superior Court of the
State of California for the County of Los Angeles.

2. Defendant Random House was served with a summons and
complaint (“Cmplt.”) on February 6, 2006. Defendant Doubleday has not yet been
served in this action.

3. The complaint arises out of the publishing and marketing of the
book “A Million Little Pieces” (the “Book”) written by defendant James F rey.

(Cmplt. 1 31).

4, Plaintiff’s complaint contains five counts, which seek relief against
Defendants for allegcd violations of the Consumer Legal Remedies Act (Count D, for
Unfair Business Practices (Count II), for violations of the Business and Professions
Code Section 17500 (Count IID), for Negligent Misrepresentation (Count IV), and for
Fraud (Count V).

5. Plaintiffs are both citizens of thf: State of California. (Cmplt. §§ 9-
10). |

6. Defendant Random House is a corporation orgamzed and ex1stmg _
under the laws of the State of New York, with its principal place of business in New

York, New York, and thus is a citizen of New York for these purposes, .
. .,

. NOTICE OF REMOVAL
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7. Defendant Doubleday is a conpqration_q;ﬁ_a_ni@ and existing

under iﬁe léws of the State of New York with its prinéipal place of business in New |

York, New York, and thus is a citizen of New York for these purposes.
| 8. Defendant Frey is a citizen of the State of New York.

9. Plaintiffs seek to pursue their claims on behalf of a class of
California residents who purchased the Book “from the time it was initially published
thr.ough the present.” (Cmplt. § 32).

' Federal Jurisdiction under the Class Action Fairness Act

10.  Application of CAFA. The Court has original jurisdiction of this

case pursuant to the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005 (“CAFA” or “the Act™).

CAFA creates federal jurisdiction over lawsuits in which “the matter in controversy

exceeds the sum or value of $5,000,000, exclusive of interest and costs, and is a class
action in which . . . any member of a class of plaintiffs is a citizcn of a State different
from any defendant,” and the number of members of all proposed plaintiff classes
exceeds 100. 28 US.C. § 1332(d)(2)(A) and (@DG).! As explained ‘below, each of

these criteria are met here,

I1.  Amount in Controversy. The aggregate amount in controversy in

this case exceeds $5,000,000, exclusive of interest and costs. Plaintiffs seek to
recover ynder California’s Consumer Legal Remedies Act, for Unfair Business
Practices and for violations of the Business and Professions Code Section 17500. In
addition, Plaintiffs seck to recover for Negligent Mistepresentation and for Fraud.? In
addition to injunctive relief secking to have defendants enjoined “from engaging in
similar unlawful acts or prac!:ices in the future,” Plaintiffs seek “all ascertainable

' CAFA applies to any action commencing on or after F ebruary 18, 2005 — the date when CAFA was
enacted. See CAFA § 9 (“The amendments made by this Act shall apply to any civil action
commended on or after the date of enactment of this Act.”) '

2 Defendants deny that Plaintiffs have stated a claim or that certification of a statewide or nationwide
class would be appropriate. Defendants further deny that Plaintiffs or any putative class member is
entitled to any relief whatsoever. ’

3
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amounts, losses, refunds, mcludmg the purchase pnce paid for A Million Little Pieces, |
and statutorily pemusmble damages attorneys’ fees, expenses, and costs.” (Cmplt Pp-
18). Based on estimates of sales of the Book in California, the amount in controvcrsy
in this action exceeds the $5,000,000 threshold. (Declaration of Donald Weisberg,
Exhibit A hereto, at 6.) The Book was sold in both a hardcover edition (with a
suggested retail price of $22.95) and a paperback edition (with a suggested retail price
of $14.95). Id. at 4. More than an estimated 26,000 hardback copies of the Book
were sold to coﬁsumcrs in California. /d. at §5. More than an estimated 350,000
paperback copies were sold to consumers in Califomia, Id. These figures suggest that
in excess of $5,000,000 is at issue in this case.

12.  Citizenship of the Parties. There is diversity of citizenship
between a members of the putative class and defendants Random House and
Doubleday: |

a Plaintiffs and the alleged putative class members are citizens
of California.

b. Defendants Doubleday and Random House are New York
corporations with their principal places of business in New York, New
York, and thus are citizens of New York for these purposes.

c. Defendant Frey is a resident of the State of New York,

d Accordingly, this action is a class action where “any
member of a class of plaintiffs is a citizen of a State different from any
defendant.” 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2)(A).

13.  Number of Class Members. As the above figures indicate, there
are more than 100 class members. _

14.  Mandatory Jurisdiction. Federal jurisdiction over this action is

mandatory, not permissive. CAFA classifies qualifying class actions (i.c., ones in
which the $5. million amount-in-controversy is met) by the number of class members

located in the state where the action is filed and the citizenship of the defendants.
- 4
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Although more than 273 of the class mcmbers are iocated in the state of Callforma, the
provision of CAFA whlch requires a court to decline jurisdiction does not apply here

of the state of California. See 28 U.S.C, § 1332(d)}(4). Even if one of the defendants
in this action were a resident of California, the Court still could not decline
Jurisdiction because, prior to the filing of this action, a class action alleging the same
or similar factual allegations was brought against defendants Random House and F rey.
See More v. Frey, et al., No. 06 CH. 00772, Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois
(January 12, 2006); 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(3)(A)(ii).2
Procedural Matters
15.  Removal is Timely. A notice of removal may be filed within 30

days after the defendant receives a copy of the initial pleading, motion, or other paper
from which it may be ascertained that the case is removable. 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b).
The United States Supreme Court has held that the 30-day period prescribed in section
1446(b) runs from the date of formal service of the complaint. Mwrphy Bros., Inc. v.
Micketti Pipe Stringing, Inc., 526 U.S. 344, 355-56 (1999). Here, Random House was
served on February 6, 2006. This notice of removal is thus timely, as the 30-day
period for removal does not expire until March 9, 2006. .

16.  Removal to Proper Court. This Court is part of the “district and
division embracing the place where” the State Court Action was filed — Los Angeles

17. Consent Not Required. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1453(b), the
consent of other defendants to this removal is not required. - :

18.  Pleadings and Process. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(a), attached
hereto as Exhibit B is “a copy of all process, pleadings, and orders served upon”

> The More case has also been rcmoved and is currently pending before the United States District
Court for the Northern District of Ilinois, Eastern Division. .
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defendant Random House. Defendants have not answered or othenmse fileda

responswe pleadmg to the Complamt

19. F iling and Service. A copy of this Notice of Removal Is bemg
filed with the Clerk of the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of
Los Angeles, and is being served on all counsel of record, consistent wnth 28US.C.§
1446(d). The Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los Angeles
is located within this district.

WHEREFORE, defendants Doubleday & Company, Inc. and Random
House, Inc. réspectfully remove this éction, now pending in the Superior Court of the
State of California for the County of Los Angeles, to the United States District Court
for the Central District of California.
Dated: February 21, 2006 Respectfully submitted,

SIDLEY AUSTIN LLP

B:r-

ifer Al Ratner

omeys or Defendants

dom House, Inc. and Doubleday &
Company, Inc. _

NOTICE OF REMGVAL
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DECLARATION OF DONALD WEISBERG
Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, Donald Weisberg declares and states as follows:

1. Myname is Donald Weisberg. I am over the age of 21 and am competent

to testify as to the statements set forth in this declaration.

2. I am cwrently the Executive-Vice President and Chief Operating Officer,

North America of Random House, Inc. (“Random House™), a position I have held since

 November 2001. In my position, I am familiar with sales figures for books published by

Random House and its related corporate enities.

3. [am familiar with the book “A Million Little i’ieces," by James Frey. .In
2003, “A Milli(;n Little Pieces” was published in hardcover by Nan A. Talese, an imprint of
Doubleday, a division of Random Housé. In 2005, “A Million Little Pieces” was published in
paperback by Anchor Books, a division of Random House.

4, The suggested retail price of the hardcover edifion of the book was $22.95.
The suggested retail price for the paperback edition of the book was $14.95.

5. Thave reviewed sales figures for “A Million Little Pieces™ maintained by
Random House in the normal-and ordinary course of its business. I have also reviewed retail

“point of sales™ data provided by certain third-parties. Based on this data, I estimate that as of

January 7, 2006: (1) more than 350,000 copies of the paperback edition of “A Miilion Little

Pieces™ were sold to consumers in California; and (2) more than 26,000 copies of the bardcover

edition of “A Million Little Pieces™ were sold to consumers in California.
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_6:__ . Based on this sales data and the suggested retail prices listed above, the _ .
.tot'al amount. of sales to consumers in California of “A Million Little Pieces” exceeds

$5,000,000.

T declare under penalty of perjury that the forgoing is true and correct.

Executed on = .w‘qg[é 2206 at &g gog_.{; NEW Yook

- Donald Weisberg
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9| SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE of CALIFORNIA
io § COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
T
, I0R AL,
2 § GARRETT HAUENSTEIN and JEAN ) CaseNo, BC344557
¥ TAYLOR, as individuals and on behalf of a )
13 § class of those similarly situated; ) CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR
}  DAMAGES AND EQUITABLE RELIEF
i4 ] Plaintiffs, ) BASED ON:
; )
I5 )] vs. ) 1. Violation of California Civil Code
.5 }  Section 1750, er seq.
15 1) JAMES FREY, BIG JIM INDUSTRIES, )
i INC, RANDOM HOUSE, INC,, ) 2. Violation of Business and Professions
i7 1 DOUBLEDAY & COMPANY, INC. and ) Code section 1 7200, ef seq.
DQES 1 through 50, inclusive, )
1% ) 3. Vielation of Business and Professions
Defendants, ) Code section 17500, et seq.
19 ) )
) 4. Negligent Misrepresentation
20 )
. ) 5. Fraud
2] :
Jary Trial Demanded
22, _
23 All allegations made in this Complaint arc based upon information and beljef except

24 ¥ those allepations which pertain to PlaintifY, which are based upon Ppersonal knowledge. Plaintiff's

25 § information and belief are based upon, inter alia, Plaimiffs own investigation and investigation

26 § conducted by Plaintiff's counsei.

Class Action Complaint




[———Y

[ S

o e . 15 of 67
o N M - Filed 02/28/2006 Page
: - -RJH Document 5-8 . )

Case 1:06-cv-00669

-

21 4 business in (he State of California. Mr. Frey has sufficient minimum contacts with California and
22 4 otherwise inten!ionally avails himself of the laws and mackets of California, thrqugh the
33 Prometion, sale, markeq ing and distribution of Products or services in California, (o render the
24 f exercise of Jurisdictiory by the California courts permissible, under taaditional nofions of fair play
25 §f and substantial justice. | '
26 5. . This court has jurisdiction oy er Big Jim lnd@iﬁ Inc. because it js 5 corporation
27 § or assaciation authorized 10 do and conduct substangjaj business in (he State of Califomniq Big
&

L 1
|

badh
|

NATURE OF THEg ACTION
o2k OF THE ACTION

This action seels seliel against James Frey,
§ Company, Inc. and Docs § throug

L

7 § 10 Defendants tllegal business practices in violation of Califoria Civil Code Section 1750, ¢/
£ i seq, Business and Professions Code Scction 17200 ¢t seq., Business and Professions Code
Q

Section 17500 ¢ seq., negligeng misrepresentation and fraud.
2

This consumer class and private attomey general action arises from the

Defendants® misrepresentation of James Frey’s ook, «

i3 ? =t fiction,

4 t.
15

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
1 ) o

. Class Action Complaim |
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12 § corporation or assaciation

14 ¥ otherwise intentionally

15 { sale, oarketing and distribution of products or services in California, to render the
16 |

19 § 395 because

21 !' substaniial

les County and the State of
22 § California. —
23] .
24 | THE PARTIES

10 } Califomia courts permissible, under traditionat
17

i Plainti{f Taylor purchased the book on or about October 27

exercise of jurisdiction by the
4 § California courts penmissible, under traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice.
6. This court has jurisdiction over Random | louse, Inc. because itisa corporalion or -

6 ¥ association authorized 1o do and conduct substantjal business in the State of California.

Random
71 House, Inc. has sufficicat minimum cong

acts with California and otherwise intentionally avails
itself of the laws and markets of California, through the promotion, sale, marketing and

9 | disteibution of products or services in Cal fornia, to render the exercise of jurisdiction by the

notions of fair play and substantial justice.

7. This caurt has jurisdiction over Doubleday & Company, Inc.

because itisa
authorized 1o do and conduct substantiat business in the State of

Califomia. Doubleday &: Company, Inc. has suflicient mininium contacts with California and

avails itself of the laws and nmarkets of California, through the Ppromolion,

exercise of

| judisdiction by the California courts permissible, under traditionaf notions of fair play and

8 Venue is proper withia this judicial district upder Code of Civil Procedure Section

i a substantial part of the acts, conduct, events or omissions alleged herein occurred or
:

{ Will oceur within Los Angeles County and in the State of Califomia, and Defendants conduct

busiuess with consumers who reside in Los Ange
! -

9, PlaintifY Jean Tayloris an aduli individaal restding i Los Gatos, California,

27, 2005 at a Costco warehouse store.

10. Plaiatiff Garrett Haucnstein s an adult individuat residing in Los Angeles,

Chass Action Complaing
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2 § Noble bogkstore,

1. Defendant James Frey is an individual res:dmg in New York and doing business

12 Defendant Big Jim lnduslnes Inc.isaNew Yeork corporation registered (o do
6§ busmcss in the State of Cal:fomm, and doing busincss in the Siate of California and the County
7} ol' Los Angeles.
8 13.  Defendant Random House, lnc. is a New York corporation regisiered to do

9 1l business in the Stute of California, and doing business in the State of California and the County
10 § of Los Angeles.
H 4. Defendant Doubleday & Company, Inc.isa New York corporation registered to
12 § do business in the State of California. and doing business in the Stale of Callfomm and the
13 § Coumty of Los Angeles. 15 a New York corporation registered 1o do business in the Siate of
14 ¥ Califomia, and doing business in the State of California and the County of Los Angeles,
15 15. Fhe true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, associate or
16 I otherwise of the defendants Docs I theough 50, inclusive, are unkaown to Phaiatiff who therefore
17 ¥ sues said Defendants by such fictitious names pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 474;
'8 § PlaintifT further alleges that each of said fictitious Deﬁ:nduﬁls is in soine manner responsible for
19 8 the acts and oécuﬂcncs hercinafier set forth. Plaintiff will amend this Complaint to show their
2¢ § true names and capacitics when same are ascenained, as well as the maaner in which each

21 § fictitious Defendant is resposnisible.

i3 . 1v.
23 FACTUAL BACKGROUND
Z4 16. On oraboul. May 2003, Random House, lnc. and Doubleda} & Company, Inc.

25 § published James l‘ rey’s book A Million Little Pieces.

26 17. Random House, nc., Doubleday & Company, Inc. and author Frey represented

27 § the work as a “Memoir.” These representations were made on the book’s cover. in mcdia press

H -4- o .+ Class Action Complaing. |

1 | Califomia. Plaintiff Gauchsteii puichased the bk o or about October 9, 2005 at'a Barnes &
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Sales
14 { skyrocketed
21, Among the millions of viewers who wilnessed author Frey on The Oprah

26§

27

” Cés.é 1:.06-6\/.-00669-.RJH Document 5-8 . Filed 02/28/2006 Page 18 of 67

: Kits, in 'télev;'is:ion'z'irid ﬁe;\'sm;ﬁcr iu(en_*ie;\,s and at pclﬁonal appearances by author Frey,
18, According to Random House, Inc., Doublcday & Comp;myﬂnc.' and author Frey,

[ AM illion Little Pieces is a truc account of Frey's criminal past, rampant drug and alcohol abuse,
| and i Inspiring recovery at a Minncsota rchabilitation fiac
i
5 § becamea publishing phenomenon,

19. More than 3.5 million copics of A Million Little Pieces have sold. More than 2.1
¢t million copics of A Million L. ittle Pieccs sold aficr iclevision personality Oprah Wmﬁ'cy sclected
j 1t for her popular book club. Ms. Wi

acility. On this basis, author Fi rey’s memoic

aftey’s stamp of approval is known for turning unknown
i authors into best-sellers overnighl.
20. On October 26, 2005, Ms. Winfrey interviewed author Frey on The Oprah

1 g Winfrey Show..On the program, author Frey tearfully represented (o millions of television

viewers that his memair was an honcst work of non-fiction. Relying on these representations,

Ms.Winfrey lauded the memoir she believed 10 be true as a “mesmerizing story.”

Winfrey Show was plaintiff Jean Taylor. Ms. Taylor was captivated by author me‘§

4 (nerportedly truc story of redemption. Frey's representations on The Oprah Winfiev Show ' caused

Mrs. Taylor lo visit a Cosico warehouse store the following day specifically to purch
j A Miltion Liute Pieces. She did in fact purchase of copy of A Miltion Little Pieces that day,
' 22,

ase a copy of

Garreit Hauenstein was motivated to purchase a copy of A Milfion Litde Picces

I after leaming theough the media of author Frey's truthful and i mSpmng, account of overcoming

drug and alcohol addiction. Mr. Hauenstcin had recendy ceased using alcohol. He purchased
copy of A Ml"mg Little Pieccs at 2 Barnes & Noble bookstore.

23. Random ilousc, lnc » Doubleday & Company, Inc. and author F rey

have profited
- handsomely from A Mtlhon Litde Picces, reaping millions of dollars § m profits. Additionally,

; author Frey, just a few years removed fmm his lifc as a struggling Tlollywood Screcnwriter,

r parlayed the success of A Milhon Little Pieccs into mumerous lucrative mov;

ie deals.
}

- Class Action Complaint




Case 1:06-cv-00669-RJH  Document 5-8  Filed 02/28/2006 Page 19 of 6

24 Despite Randorn Housé: Inc., Doubleday 4 Company, Inc. and author Frey's

| represeatations; A Million Little Picces has been exposed as a work of fiction.

25. The fraud was initially cxposed in a lengthy expose’ published by The Smokine

| Gun web sile on January 8, 2006. Among the “teaths™ debunked is author Frey's claim to have

spent three months i;u an Ohio jail, an incident that he infers that precipitated the suicide of his

love intcrest “Lilly.”" In truth, he spent only a few hours in jail. The existence of “Lilly™ and her

| purported suicide is now in question. Also disproved was author Frey's claim 10 have struck a

& 1 police officer witha car. In A Million Liule Pieces.” this harrow ing incident resulisin a wrestling
H match with the officer and the prospect of years behind bars for Frey, which fuels the second half

- of the book. In truthy, his car struck a curb and he was ticketed for driving under the influence.

11 f These falschoods have called into question the truthfulness of every person and event in the

© § memoir, including author Frey's criminal past, hiis molestation by a priest i;I France, physical

3 § allercations with other rehabilitation facility residents, rool canal procedure without pain

1 § medication, and even the existence of facility residents such as author Frey's lover “Lilly,”
g mafioso friend “Leonard,™ other facility residents. These elements and many others like them

a3

bolster the story's narmative and make author Frey a compelling anti-hero, As such, they play a

Pieces is

]
i ij eritical role in author Fecy's memoir of redemption. Without them, A Million Liufe
13 indistinguishable literally. from thousands of other works of fiction published each year.
9

26. - OnaJanuary | 1,2006 appearance on the nationally (elevised Larcy Kine Live

20 § show, author Frey himself concedes A Million Litile Picces jsa “subjective retelling of events,”

21 ¥ and he acknow ledged embellishments and outright falschoods. Author Frey also stated ke

e
ral

asiginally submitted A Million Littie Pieces to Random House, Ine. for considération as a waork

W
tes

of fiction, but that it was 1¢jected, and that Random House, Inc. and Doubleday & Company, Inc.

b
b

oaly purchased the book afier author Frey sepackaged the same story as non-fiction, Author Frey

25 § further stated that Random House, Inc. and Doubleday & Company, Inc. had not decided whether

26 | 10 publish A Million Litle Picees as fictien or non-fiction even dfter they puschased the book,

27 indicating Random House, Inc. and Doubleday & Company, Inc. knew or should have known A
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dillian Liudé Picees vwas o 4 tiie dnd honesi v ork of non-fiction. During the telecast, Oprah

Winfrey appeared via telephonc and supported author Frey and his méemoir, Ms. Winfrey's

continucd support enabled A Million Liwle Pieces 10 remain at the top of the bestseller lists and

Random House, Inc., Doubleday & Company, Inc. and author Frey (o reap additional uniold

profits,

7 27 On a fanuary 26, 2006 m—apﬁcarancc on The Opmah Winfrey Show, author.Frcy
was confronted by the formerdy supponiye Ms.Winfrey who said she felt "dumci" and believed

| the author "betrayed millions of readers” by making up elements of his life. Ms. Winfrey noted
that her stafT had been alerted to possible discrepancics in author Frey's book, only to be assured
by RandomyHouse, Inc that the MCmoir was (rue, precipitating her support on the Lagry King
Live show. Commeating on the Smeking Gun expose, author Frey stated “Most of what they

Wrate is presty accurate” Author Frey said he had made up many of the details of his life and had

ll created a bad-guy portrayal of hi mselfas a "coping mcchilnism-" He also stated *{ made a fot of

mistakes in writing the book and promoting the hook * Pressing further, Ms, Winfrey asked ifhe

3 made up the material because jt helped him cope or because he thought it would help sell books,

A-ulhor,Frcy responded, “Probably both.” Fecy's admissions cast doubt og the truthfulness of

: cach and every page.

28. Alse on the January 26, 2006 Opraly Winfrev S how, publisher Nan A. Talese,
tepresenting Random ouse, Inc. and Doubleday &: Company, Inc. told Ms. Wirfrey that

Random House and Doubleday editors who read the A Miilion Litile Pieces raised no questions
about its many incredible elciments and that it reccived legal ven ing. She acknow ledged A
Million Litde Pieces had not been fact-checked and that future copies would cany a disclaimer
informing consuiners of the book’s fictional nature.

29 | Alsoron Janaary 26, 2006, motivated by the blatant admissions of fraud and
negligence made by author Fecy and Random House, Inc. representative Nan A. Talese on The

Oprah Winfrey Show, Random House, Inc. and Doubleday & (fompany, fuc. issued a press
release accepting respansibility for repeesenting A Million Linle Picces 1o be a memoir rather

.=7- Class Action Complaint
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‘than a work of fiction. (Séc “News from Doubleday 8 Anchor News” piess relcasé, attached -

2 ﬂ hereto-as Exhibit “A7). In part, the press releasc reads: “{ijt is not the policy or stance of this

company that it doesn’t matter whether a book sold as noafiction is true ”

V.

FACTS REGARDING DEFENDANTS’ UNLAWEUL CONDUCT

30, Author Frey (raudutently represented his book A Million Little Picces to be a true
and honest work of non-fiction at personal appcarances, in print and on televison, including, but
not limiled to The Oprah Winfrey Show.

3t Random House, Inc. and Doubleddy & Company, Inc. fraudulently represcnted
and promoted the book A Million Little Picces to be a truc and honest work of non-fiction, on the
bool’s cover, through press kits, promotions, pres:.i relcases and various other media channels,
iacluding but not limited to, the New York Timcs, USA Today, Amazon, Barnes & Noble and

other best-scllers lists.

Vi.
CLASS ALLEGATIONS
32, PlaintifTs brings this action, on behalf of themselves and all olhuss;ia_lilariy

situated, as a class action pursuant to California Code of Civit Procedure Section 382 and

California Civil Code Section 1781. The Class which Plaintifls secks to represent (“The Plaiat(f

Class™) is defined as follows:
All consumers in California who pucchascd the book
A Million Little Picces from the time it was initially publisted
through the prescat (the “Class Period™),

33. Excluded from the Class are Defendants in this action, any entity in which

| Defendants have a controHling interest, any officers or directors of Defendants, the legal
representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns of Defendants, and any judicial officer assigned to

# this matter.

34, Plaintif¥s reserve the right, upon completion of discovery with respect to the

{ scope of the Class and the Class Period to amend the definitions set forth above.

-8- _ Class Action Complaint
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33..  The members of the Class arc so numerous and geographically diverse that

-joinder of all of them is impracticable. Plaintiffs believe, and therefore aver, that there are more

than teas of thousands of members of the Class within Califomia and a multiple thereof
nationwide.

36. Plaintiffs, who are membess of the Class as indicated; have suffered ham, ace

committed to pursuing this action, and have retained compelent counsel experienced in class

action litigation and in litication of this nature. Accordingly, Plaintiffs are adequate
representatives of the Class because they have the same interests as all the members of the Class,
their claims are typical of the claims of the members of lhn; Class, and they will fairly and
adequately protect the inlercs!s_ of the Class. _

37. There are questions of law and fact conititon to. nlcnlbc-."ts of the Class that
predominate over any questions af fecting any individual members including, i_.n,te_g alia, the
following: )

(@  Whether Defendants’ false and/or misleading statements of fact and
conccalment of material facts, 10 the Class and the public were likely to deccive the Class and the
public;

(b)  Whether Defendants®, by their conduct as set forth herein, has engaged in
unfair, deceptive, unirue, or mislcading statemcnts nipoul the tauthfulness of A Million Litile

Pieces:

(€)  Whether Defendants’ conduct caused damages for which Defendants are
fiable;

(d)  Whether, as a result of Defeadants’ misconduct, Plaintift and the Class are

entitled to damages, restitution, injunctive, equitable and other relief, and the amount and nature

of such refief,
38 The likelihood that individual members of the Class will prosecute sepamlé and
individual actions is remote due to the relatively small — albeit substantial in the aggregate —

actual and potential dantages 1o be suffcred by each member of the Class compared (o the losses

-9- . €hass Action Complaist
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--1 §.suffered by the Class-asa whole compared to thie burden and expcnse of -;;}osa:'uling 'lil‘igai-ion of

2 l this nature and magnitude. Plaintiff envisions po difficulty inthe management of this action asa’

3 i Class Action.

4 39, For the recasons stated above, a Class Action is superior to other available

3 f methods for the fair and efficicnt adjudication of the controversy.

6 Vi,

7 PRIVATE ATTORNEY G ENERAL ALLEGATIONS

8 : 4_0. Plaintiffs assert claims in this aclion as aprivate attomey general on behalf of
9 [’ members of the general public residing within the State of California pursuant to California

1G.§ Business and Professions Code section 17204 in order to enjoin defendants from engaging in the
H ¥ unfair, unlawful and deceptive business practices alleged in this Complaint and to require
Defendants to set up a restitutionary account to disgorge and restore (o the members of the

43 & general public residing within the State of California af monies wrongfully obtained by

14§ Defendants through their unlaw ful busi_ness practices. A private altomey general action is

13 | wecessary and appropriate because Defendants have engaged in the wronaful acts described

16 ¢ herein as a general business practice. .
P2 : ViiL
i3 , FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(A0 Defeadants - Violatioas of the Consumer
1) Legal Remedices Act - Iajunctive Relicf Only)
20 41. PlainiifT incorporate by reference all previous paragraphs of this Complaint as if

: fully set forth, and further alleges as follows. This cause of action is broughi on behaif of
| Plaintiffs and the Class against all Defendants.

4?2, The Consumer Lepat Remlcdics. Act, Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1750, et seq. (the "Act"),
provides Cal_ifom-ia consumers with a comprehensive procedure for redressing Dcﬁ:ndm;l’s

| violations of various statutory rights.

43.  Defendants® misrepresentation of A Million Litle Pieces. which is a “good”

under section 1761(a), as a true and honest work of noa-fiction has violated, and continues to

-I_O- .+ ... . ClassAction Complain
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J| violate, ihe CLRA i at feasy the folloving respecis:

3%

(a) . la violation of section 1770(a)2) of the CLRA, Defendants® have

bed

-' misrepeesented the spansorship, approval or certifieation of the goods or services in question;
| (b)  In violation of section 1770(a}(5) of the CLRA, Dcfendants® acts and
practices constitute representations that the £00ds or services in question have approval,

: characteristics, uses or benefits which they do not have or that a person has sponsorship,

| approval, status, aftiliation, or connection which he or she does nog have;

3 ’ (€)  In violation of section 1770(a)(7) of the CLRA, Defendants” acts and
9 practices consli_l;nc repmc;nlations that the goods or services in question are of a particular
134 ’ Saadard, quality or grade, w hen they are nog;
it (d) In violation of section 1770(a)(9) of the CLRA, Defendants’ acts and

practices constitute the advertisement of goods in questions withouw the intent to sell theip as
i3 ) advedtised;
id (¢) Inviolation of section 1770(a){16) of the CLRA, Defendants® acts ang
i ¥ f practices constitute representations that the subject of the transaction haf; been supplied in
16 §f accordance with previous representations when it has nol.

T 44. By reason of the foregoing, Pliintiffs and Class members have been irreparably
i barmed, entitfing them 10 both injunctive relief and restitution.

19 43. Pursuant to section 1782 of the Act, PlaintifTs notified Defendants in writing,

mn ' dated January 27, 2006, of lhc particular violations of section 1770 of the Act. l_’laiguiﬂ's

21 Il demanded Defendants rectify the actions described above by providing compleie monetary relic]
22 it agreeing to be bound by their legal obligations and give notice to0.all affected customers of their
23 § intent 1o do so. Plaintiffs sent this notice by certificd mail, return receipl requested, 1o

24 § Defendants’ principal places of business.

25 46. if Dcfendant fails 1o respond to plaintifls demand within 30 days of the letter

26 § purswant to section 1782 of the Act, Plaintif¥s will amend this Complaint to add clain!s for actual,

27 § punitive and Statutory damages. Plainlifts are already entitled to the reljef set forth above, along

. _~.“- o : .‘Class!\cﬁm(‘mml:im
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| with cosis; attornéys® fécs and any other relief which lhg.Cc;u'rl deems proper.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(All Defendants - Ualawful Business Practices -
Violation of Business and Professions Code Section 17200)

47. Plainiifis incorporate by rcfc:cncc all previous Paragraphs of this Complaint as jf

48. Plaintiffs assert this claim against Defendants for unlawduf business practices

pursuant te California Business and Professions Code Sections 17200 ¢« seq. which prohibits alf
untawfid or unfair business practices and/or acts. These statutes are liberally construed to protect
H ¥ Califomia consumers.

2y 49. . Plénimiﬂ‘s asserts their claim as a member of an aggrieved class of persons who

i3 ¥ have expended funds that Defendants should be required to reimbusse under the restitutionary

4 § remedy specified in Busincss & Professions Code section 17203,

30.  Defendants represented A Million Little Picces 10 be a truc and honest work of
: 4 Mithon Litle Pieces

§ non-fiction, which it is not, rendering Defendants® representations unfair, unlrue, misleading
. 4 and/or likely 10 decejve Plaintifls, members of the Class and the general public.
51 Defendants’ practices deccived consumers who trusted Defendants’

| representations that A Million Liule Picces is a true and honiest work of non-fiction, which it is

i not. As such, Defendants” representations arc unlawful and censtitute ag “unfair busincss
{ practice.*
52, By acting as alleged herein, Defeadant employed unconscionable commercial

' Practices, deceplion, false advertising, flse promiscs and misrepresentation to lure Consunlers ta

 purchase A Million L ittle Pieces.
afdruon Little Pieces
: 33, The practices of the Defendants have injured PhaintifFs and members of the Class

by causing them spend money on 2 book they othenwise would not have purchased, and/or in the

i altcrnative, by docreasing (he value and enjoyment of the purchased book.

=12 . o = Class Action Complain
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T - 54 The vidavfid acts and practices of &féﬁdéiu as all-egcd ab:ov; constitute u.n-la\-:ﬁul )
. 2| busincss practices within the mcaning of Califosnia Business and Professions Code Section
3 E 17200, et seq.

4 THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

(All Defendants - Viotagion of Business and Professions Code Section 17500, et seq.)

55. Plaintifls incorporate by reference all previous pacagraphs of this Complaint asif

5
6
7 § fully st l‘onl?, and further alleges as follows. This cause of action is brought on behaif of
b4 ‘ Plaintiffs and the Class against all Defendants,

9

56. During the class period Defendaats have committed acts of untrue and misleading

10 | advertising, as defined by Business and Professions Code section 17500, by engaging in acts and

i § practices with intent 10 induce consumers to purchase A Million Ligle Pieces. The following acts
. T T e

2 & and practices, among others, ¢rcated a likelihood of confusion and misunderstanding in

i3 ji =onnection with the sale of A Million Lite Pieces:

4 (@)  Author Frey fraudulently represented his book A Million Liule Pieces tobe
£C%on Lillle Pieces

i3 3 true and honest work of non-fiction at personal appearances, in print and on televison, including.

16 £ but not limited (o The Oprah Winfrev Show.

i? (6) Raandom House, Inc. and Doubleday & Company, Inc. represented and

i8 a promoted the book A Million Litile Pieces 1o be a true and hones work of non-fiction on the
A Million Litde Pieces
19§ book’s cover, through press KLits, promotions, press releases and various other media channcls,

including but not limited to; the New York Times, USA Today, Anazon, and Bames & Noble

NN
= ¥

best-sellers lists.

I
ted

57 Phainliffs and other members of the Class relied on and were deceived by
23 | Defendants® false and deeeplive advertisements aad praclices as set forth above, and as a direct

24 ¥ and proximate fesult of the aforementioned acts, Defendants received and continue 1o hold ill-

23 f| pottcn gains belonging to Plaintifl and members of the Class,
26 ' 58. la addition te the relief fequested in the Prayer below, Phintifts seck the

27 {f imposition of a constructive trust over, and restitution and disgorgement of, the monies collected

-15- Class Action Complain
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order requiring them fo cease from false and misleading adventising of A Million Litle Pieces.
_ : T LIRCGS
FOURT CAUSE OF ACTION
{All Defendants - Negligeat Misrcprts'cnialion)
59. Plaintifls incorporate by reference all previous paragraphs of this Complaint a5 if
fully sct forth, and further alleges as follows, This Causc of action is brought on bohalf, of
Plaintifls and the Class against all Defendants,

60. Defendants recklessly or ncgligently miscepresented or concealed facts relating (o

fiction.

61.  The facts misrepresented o omitted by Defendants were and are material.

62. Plaintiffs and other members.of the Class, believing Defendants representations
that A Miltion Liuje Picees was a teue and houcst wodk of non-fiction, and withou means to
know otherw ise, reasonably refied upon Defendaats® misreprcsemalions, o'missions and other
practices, directly or indirecily, and purchased said boolk.

63. Plaintif6s and the other nicmbers of the Class have therchby been damaged, the
exact amount of which is present fy unknown, but is capable of being ascerniained.

64. As a resull of Defeadants® Practices as sct forth berein, Defendants are fiable fo

Plaintiffs and the other memibers of the Class for compensatory damages, interest-and costs.

FIFTH CAUSE QF ACTION
(Al Defendants - Fraud}

65. Plaintiffs incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this Complaint as if
fully set focth, a;ld further alleges as follows, This causc of action is brought on'behaif o}'
Phaintiffs and the Class against all Defendants.

66. Defendants carried out a fraudulent scheme in which thcy made represcntations

that A Million Liule Picces was a true and honest work of non-fiction, including, but not timited
£ Mdlron Litde Picees

to, through the follow ing media:

(@) In the Febnuary 3, 2003 edition of the New York Observer, author Frey

———
-4- Class Action Comglaint
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States of A Million Litle Pieces. "All that mattéss is whiat e feelings are and what the events
A Miltian Liitte Pieces

2 § are” *It's not about all this trickery. When I think about wiiting. 1 have a very simple formula:

[——— S e
. e
[T

3 I Where was I? Who was I with? What happened? And how did it make me feel? Those are the

4 [l only important th tngs...” In reaction to mention of other popular authors, Frey states:"! think my
5 || approach to telling a story couldn't be more differcat than theirs is.™ * whiak they'ee fill of belis
¢ § and whistles and tricks ;md being cute and being ironic and being alt this shit. To be koncst, |

7 | don understand it. 1's not how I think or how | foef,_". |

8 _ ()  In the April 4, 2003 jssue of the national magazine Entertainment Weeklv,

9 § author Frey spoke of the value truth brings to his book, stafing: "Books about addicted people are
i f often written in a way that makes them sound cool...and it's not cool or fin or glorious or

H & romantic, It's just awfuf_. [w]hen I wrote the lagt words, I'burst out in tears for about an

22 hour.__{jlust bawled at my desk ¥ Aiding in Frey’s miseeprescntation of A Million Little Picces

i1 8 wag Frey's Random House, Inc. editor, Sean McDonald, who discussed author Frey's memoir,

4 {l stating "His book is not Jjust mouthing off," he says, "which is what James can do in interviews,

{1
15 l And eleady, there's some fear that people would treat the book the same way, which would be
15 I terrible
37 ! (©  Inthe April 21, 2003 edition of the Chicago Sun-'fimes.- author Frey stated

t2 1 of eriticism of A Million Liule Pieces and i(s truthfulness, "l didn't seq out io be anything but a
B preat writer, l don't care if somebody calls me a ‘literary bad boy" and I don't care if they don’(, It's
21 § not any of My concern. People can say whatever they want about me. And | know that's gonna

2{ 4 happen, and I'm fully prepared for it to happen. My concem is what { do when I sit down and |
22 § work. And my concem is ifl -can look myself'in the mirror when wake up in the morning. And

23 | my concem is if | make my family and my wife and the people I work with proud of me, Beyond

24 §f that, 1 don'( give 3 5--."
25 (d)  In the May 6, 2003 edition of the Cleveland Plain Dealer, author Frey

26 | states:"The publisher contacted the people I wrote about in the book,* fie sajd. “All the events
27 Y depicted in the book checked out as factually accurate. § changed people’s names. 1 do believe in

-15- . Class Action Contptaint. |
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} the anonynity part of AA. The orily things I changed €r€ aspects of pc_:opl'e'i];ﬁl' ‘I-‘I.lighl- reveal

theic identity. Otherwise, it's all true ™

L8]

()  InaMay 20,2003 interview published in the Los Angeles Times, author

| Frey said of his memair, I was trying to keep it as honesty-based as possible.” "1 don't think

| anyone's written about detoy the way | have.” “Maybe other writers have focpotien how aw ful it is
or maybe they're worried that if they write about how awful it is, itll wm people ofl” “Whea you
detoxifly yourself, you throw up constantly. You're sick, constantly: Your body is an utter disaster.
[ tried to write what ] experienced.” When he sat down to write A Million Liule Pieces, he
explained, the trend 1owaed icony was at its height, but it wasn't an approach he wanted to follow,
“1 think the best literature, the best writing, is honest and true * He wrole the memoir, in some

ways, he explained, 10 honor the people who'd been in rehab with him, many ofwhom have since

124 died from the conscquences of their addictions. “You have to be eamest and sentimental to do
(3§ thar~
14 (O Indhe July 27, 2005 edition of the Minneapolis Star Tribune, Random

5 ¥ (fouse, Inc. editor Nan A. Talese defended the truthfulness of A Million Litile Pieces, stating,

t6 § “You have to remember when someone ts writing in the first person, it is their memory as they
£7 & recall it” “And memory is very sclective; there's no such thing as the whole story. If they took a

i8 i fie-detector test it would probably be !-rue. but if that person had a witness all the way through,

{9 ¥ maybe it didn't exactly happen that way. But that's how they secit.” Tafese also stated, "Our

20§ lawyersare \ery, very careful.”

23 (g} Inlate 2005, author Frey published a message to individuals critical of A
22 Million Litle Pieces and its truthfulniess on his Bigjimindustries.com web site: “Ley the haters
23 § hate, let the doubters doub, I stand by my book, and my life, and § won’y di‘gﬁifythis {sic) with

24 § any sort of further response.”
25 (h)  Onthe October 26, 2005 episode of The Oprah Winfrey Show., author Frey

26 3 stated, “"If | was gonna write a book that was true, and [ was gonna write a book that was honest,

] 27 § then 1 was ponna have 16 w tite abowt myself in very, very negative ways.®

-16- - L. Class Action Complaing
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- .On theTanvary F1,2006 episodé 5 Larry Kine Live. author

| commented on A Milliog Litde Pieces’ account of his time in 2 Minncsola rehabilitation facility,
. L M—‘——-—. -

%]

| stating “As ['ve said and 1l continue o say, this is the trae story of what { went through these,”

L

G) On January 11, 2006, Random House, Inc. issued a press release stating

ok

| “Were standing by our auther.™ Fhe press release also noted author F ITY’s memoir was “highly

-

1 personal” and said thay My Frey had represented 1o the publisher that the stocy was “truc to his

| recollections.”

) Asof January 27, 2006, Random House, lac.'s web sje promoted A
9 LI Million Little Pieces as “an uncommonly £enuine account of a Jife destroyed and a life
14 ¢ reconstructed,”

i 67. When Defendants made their representations they knew them to be false.

12 638. When Defendants made these fafse representations they made them w ith the

13§ intention to induce their cuslomers 10 act in reliance on thie fepresentations made, or with the
1% § expectation that their customers would so act.

s i 69. Plaintiffs and the Ciass purchased A Million Lit(le Pieces based upon Defendants”
. _-_-—"'-'———-_‘_—

1€ § representations it Was a true and honest work of noa-fiction. As such, Defendants representations

| .
7 #-were material.

igy 70. Defendants had exclusive knowledae of maicriat [acts not known to the plaintifis
19§ or.the Class. .
20 71 Plaintifls werc ignorant of the falsity of Déléndants‘ representations and believed
21 § themtobe truc.’ In reliance of thesa representations, Plaintiffs weye induced to and ﬁid purchase
22 § A Million Litgle Pieces. Had Phaintiffs and the Class known the aciyal facts, they would not have
22 H frurchased the book. Plain(il’l‘s and the Class” refiance on Defendants’ representations was
23 | justified because Defendants” continyed their fraudulent scheme of misrepresenting the true nature
25 4 ofA Million Little Pieces throughout the Class Perigd,
.26 1. 2 Asa direct and proximate result of Defendans® [rudulent condua, Plaintifls and

27 § members of the Class have suffered damages and economic loss in an amount 10 be proven at

!
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k proposed class, and appointing Plainti ffs and their undersigned counsel of recard and any additional

i class representatives necessary to adequately represent the class;

3. I perpetriting the fraud allcged herein, Defendaats acted in a willful, wanton and
| malicious manner, in callous, conscious and intentional discegard for the rights of Plaintiffs and
| members of the Class, and with knowlcdge that their actions and conductwere substantially likely
| (0 vex, annoy and injure Plaintiff and members of the Class. As a result thereof, Plaintiffs and

| members of dic Class are entitled to an award of punitive and exemplary damages against

i Defendants, purswant to California Civil Code section 3294, in an amount acc .rghﬁv:' of at

trial.

1X.

RAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand Judgment against Defendants as follows:

A, Ordering that the action be maintained asa California siate class action, certifying the

B. Restoring and awarding Plaintiffs and Class members all ascertainable amounts,
losses, refunds, inclading the purchase price paid for A Million Little Pieces, any statwtorily
permissible damages, attorneys' fees, expenscs, and costs;

C. Mandating Defendants to disgorge and then restore and/or make restitution of any

mioncy (o the representative Plainti(fs and to each Class member which may have been acquired by

. future;

§ necessary o compensate thent full y for their losses, together with interest;

Defendants by means of its unlawful conduct alleged in this complaint;

D. Enjoining Defendants from-engaging in similar unlawful acts or practices in the
E. Awarding Plaintiffs and the other members of the Class danuges in an amount

F. For costs of suit and attorneys' fees;

G. For such other and further relief which the Court deems necessary, just and proper.

- - 18- Class Action Comiphaint




Case 1:06-cv-00669-RJH . Document 5-8  Filed 02/28/2006  Page 32 of 67

X.
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL -

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury on all claims so triable.

Dated: January 27, 2006 | Respectfully submitted,

" Hector G. Gancedo (SBN 132139y
Tina B. Nieves (SBN 134384)
Christopher W. Taylor (SBN 236245)
GANCEDO & NIEVES LLP

By:
. Christopher W. Taylor
144 W. Colorado Boulevard
Pasadena, California 91105
Tel: (626) 685-9800 -
Fax: (626) 685-9803

Attomeys for Plainti{f
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| Tind B. Nieves (SBN 134334)

| Hector G. Gancedo {SBN 132139)
| GANCEDO & NIEVES LLp

| 144 W. Colorado Boulevard

¥ Pasadena, California 91105

| Tel: 626/685-9300

Fax: 626/685-9808

| Atlomeys for Plaintill

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

Case No.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR
DAMAGES AND EQUITABLE RELIEF
BASED ON:

1" Violation of Caifornia Gixi Code
Section 1750, ef seq.

| GARRETT HAUENSTEIN and JEAN
i TAYLOR, as individuals and on behalfof a
§ class of those similarly situated;

Plaintiffs,
vs.

)
)
)
)
)
)
o |
| JAMES CHRISTOPHER FREY, BIG JiM ) :
) 2. Violation of Business and Professions
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

] INDUSTRIES, INC., RANDOM HOUSE,
Code section 17200, e seq.

INC., DOUBLEDAY & COMPANY, INC.
and DOES | through 50, inclusive,

Defendants,

‘ 3. Violation of Business and Professions
Code scction 17500, e/ seq.

4. Negligent Misrepreseatation

20 | 5. Fraud
21 Jury Trial Demanded

All allegations made in this Complaint are based upon information and belief excepl
| those allegations which pertain 1o PlaintifY, which are based upon personal knowledpe. Plaingiffs
| information and belief arc based upon, inter alia, Plaintiff's own investigation and investigation

| conducted by Plaintiff's counsel.

Class Action Comgaing | .-
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L
NATURE OF THE ACTION
1 This action sceks relicf against James Frey, Random House, Inc,, Doubleday &-
Compm{y, Inc. and Does | through 50(collectively referred to as “Defendants™) for monctary,
injunciive, eq;xitable and declaratory relief for the Class members Jean Taylor and Gacret

Hauenstein sepresent and for the general public of the State of Califomia who have been exposed

o Defendants’ illegal business practices in violation of California Civil Code Section 1 750, et
yeq, Business and Professions Code Section 17200 ¢« seq., Business and Profcsswns Code”
Scction 17500 et seq., negligent misrepresentation and fraud.

2. This consumer class and private attomey general action arises from the

Defendanits” misreprésentation of James Frey's book, “A Miltion Lile Pieces,” as a true and
fonest work of non-fiction to induce sales, when in fact Defendants kncw the book was a \\ﬁk
of fiction. '
Il
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This Court has jurisdiction over this class action under Aticle 6, Section 10 of the
California Constitution, and Section 410.10 of the California Code of Civil Procedure. Federal
Jurisdiction does riot exist in this case because there is no federal (.].ueslim implicated and each
Class member’s claim for relief will not exceed the federal jurisdictional minimum of $75,000.

4. This court has jurisdiction over James Frey becausc he conducts substantial
business in the State of California. Mr. Frey has sufficient minimum comtacts with Califomia and
otherwise intentionally avails himself of the laws and markets of Califomia, through the
promouon sale, marketing and distribution of products or services.in Califomia, to render thie
exercise of j Jurisdiction by the California courts permissible, under traditional notions of fair play
and substantial justice.

5. This court has jurisdiction over Big Jim Industries, Inc. because itis a corporation

or association authorized to do and conduci substantial busmcss in the State of Cahl'omm Big

2 o Clags Action Comphaint




2 || corporation or association authorized to do and conduct substantial business in the State of

Jim Indystries; Inc-has sufficient minimum contacts-with California-and otherwise intentionally -
F avails ilsclfo( the laws and markets of Qalj(omiq, through the promotion, sale, marketing and
j distribution of products or scrvices in California, 10 reader the exercise of jurisdiction by the
i California courts permissible, under traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice.

6. This court has jurisdiction over Random House, Inc. becauscitisa corporalion or
association authorized to do and conduct substantial business in the State of Califoraia. Random
House, Inc. has sufficicnt minimum contacts with California and otherwise i;llcmio'nally avails
itsell of the laws and markets of Califomnia, through the promotion, sale, marketing and
distribution of products or services in California, (o render the exercise of jurisdiction by the
# California courts permissible, under traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice.

1. This courl has jurisdiction over Doubleday & Company, Inc. because it is 2

Califomia. Doubleday & Company, Inc. has sufficient minimum contacts with California and
othenvise intentionalty avails itself of the laws and markets of Califomia, through the promotion,
| sale, marketing and distribution of products or scrvices in California, to render the exercise of
jurisdiction by the Califomia courts permissible, under tm&itional notions of fair play and
substantial justice. '

8. Venue is pioper within this judicial district under Code of Civil Procedure Section
i1 395 because a substantial part of the acts, conduct, e;'enls or omissions alleged herein occusred or
| will occur within Los Angeles County and in the State of California, and Defendants conduct

substantial business with consumers who reside in Los Angcles County and the State of

ill.
THETARTIES
_ 9. Plaintifl Jean Taylor is an adult individual residing in Los Gatos, California.
| Plainti T Taylor purchased the book on or about October 27, 2005 at a Cos!c;) warchouse store.

10. Plaintiff Garrett Hauenstein is an adult individual residing in Los Angeles,

-3- Class Action Complaint
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' California. thuﬂ‘ Gauenstein puruhascd the book onor aboul October 9 2005 ata Bamcs &

-~

; Noble beokstore.

1. Delendant James Frey is an individual residing in New York and doing business
in the State of California and the County of Los Angcles.

12, Defendant Big Jim Industries, Inc. is a New York corporation registered 1o do

| business in the State of California, and doing business in the Staic of California and the County
{ of Los Angeles. '

13. Defendant Random HouSe Inc. is a New York corporaiion registered to do
business in the State of California, and doing business in the State of California and the County
10 lr of Los Angeles.

i 14. Defendant Doubleday &: Company, Inc. is a New York Cdrporation registered to
iz ¥ do business in the State of California, and doing business in the State of California and the
13 §f County of Los Angeles. is aNew York corporation registered 10 do business in the State of

14 § Califomia, and doing business in the State of California and the Counly of Los Angeles.

is 15. The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, associate or
16 & otherwise of the defendants Does | through 50, mcluswe, are unknown to Plaintiff who therefore

4 i suessaid Defendants by such fictitious names pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 474;

Plaintiff further alleges that each of said fictitious Defendants is in some manner responsible for

i Lhe acts and occurrences hereinafter set forth. Plaintiff will amend this Complaint to show their

! true names and capacities when same are ascertained, as well as the manner in which each

1
]

21 P fictitious Defendany is responsible.
22§ Iv.
23 ] . FACTUAL BACKGROUND

16, On or about May 2003, Random House, Inc. and Doubleday & Company, lnc.

| published James Frey’s book A M:llmn Litdle Pieces.
i7. Random House, Inc., Doubleday&. Company, Inc. and author _Frey represented

Ihc work as a “Memoir.” These representations were muade on the book's cover, in media press

-4 o " Ctass Adiion Complaing
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| Lits, in'iclévision and newspaper inferviews and at personal appearances by author Frey.

18: According to Random | louse, Inc., Doubteday & Company, Inc. and author Frey,

! A Million Liule Pieces is 3 true account of Frey's criminal past, ampant drug and alcohol abuse,
and il’ls-piﬁﬂg fecovery at a Minnesota sehabilitation facility. On this basis, author Frey’s miemoir
| became a publishing phenomenon. ) . |
19 More than 3.5 million copies of A Million Litle Pieces have sold. More than 2.1

million copies of A Million Littie Pieces sold afier television personality Oprah- Winfrey selected

it for her popular book club. Ms. Winfrey's stanip of approval is known for tuming unknown
| authors into best-sellers ovemight, 7
G 20. On Octaber 26, 2005, Ms, Winfrey interviewed author Frey on The Oprah '

H I Winfrev Show. On the program, author Frey tearfuily represented to millions of television

12 § viewers that his memoir was an honest work of non-fiction. Relying on these represemalions,
11§ Ms.Winfrey lauded the memoir she believed to be true as a “mesmerizing story.” Sales

{4 |t skyrocketed. |

i5y 21. Among the millions of viewers who witnessed author Frey on The Oprah

16 b Wiafrev Show was plaintiff Jean Taylor. Mys. Taylor was captivated by author Feey's

7 [ purportedly true story of redemption. Frey’s representations on The Oprah Winfrey Show caused

18§ Mrs. Tayloc to visit a Costco warehouse store the following day spectfically to purchase a copy of

194 A Million Little Pieces. She did in fact purchase of copy of A Million Linle Pieces that day.
20 1" 22 Garrett Hauensicin was motivated to purchase a copy of A Milljon Little Pieces

21 § after leaming through the media o.[' author Frey’s truthful and inspiring account of overcoming
21 ¥ drug and alcoho! addiction. Mr. Hauensteia had recently ceased using alcohol. He purchased a
23 § copy of A Millign Litile Pieces at a Barnes & Nobic bookstore,

24 " 23. Random House, Inc,, Doubleday & Company, Inc. and author Frey have profited
25 § handsomely from A Million Little Pieces. reaping millions of dollars in profits. Adtiiliomlly,

26 ¢ author Frey, just a few Years removed from his life asa struggling Hollywood screenwriter,

27 § parayed the success of A Million Little Pieces into numcrous lucrative movice deals.
£0iuon Little Preces into

-5 . Class Action Gomplaint
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- 24 § only purchased the book afier author Frey repackaged the same story as non-fiction. Author Frey

25 _ further stated that Random House, Inc. and Doublcd-ay & Company, Inc. had not-decided whether |

N B 7 '.[')-es[-Jil-c. Random -fiouf.c; Inc., Doublediy & Com];nny, Inc. and author Frc}'s
2 h representations, A Million Litile Pieces has been exposed as a work of fiction.
25.  The fmud was mitially exposed in a lcn;,thy cxpose’ published by The Smoking

| Gun web site on J:muary 8, 2006. Among the “truths™ debunked is author Frey’s claim to have

i spent theee months in an Ohio jail, an incident that he infers that precipitated the suicide of his

§ love interest “Lilly.” In tcuth, he speat only a few houss in jail. The c:gistcncc of “Lilly™ and her
y purported suicide is now in question. Also disproved was author Frey's claim tohave struck a

policc officer with a car. In A Million Little Picces.” this harrowing incident resulis in a wrestling
| match with the officer and the prospect of years behind bars.for Frey, which fuels the second half

10 i of the book. In truth, his car struck a curb and he was ticketed for driving-under the influence.
These falsehoods have called into question the truthfulness of every person and event in the
miemotr, tncluding author Frey s criminal past, his molestation by a priest in France, physical
13 § altercations with other rchabilitation facility residents, rool canal procedure without pain

14 § medication, and even the existence of facility residents such as author Frey’s lover “Lilly,”
15§ mafioso friend “Leonard,” other facility residents. These elements and many others like them
16 § bolster ithe story’s namrative and make author Frey a compelling anti-hero. As such, they play a

17 § critical role in author Frey's memoir of redemption. Without thein, A Mitlion Litile Pieces is

18 ‘ indistinguishable iitem!ly from thousands of other works of fiction published each year.
19 26, On a January 11, 2006 appearance oq the nationally televised Lary Kine Live
20 § show;, author Frey himsell concedes A Milfion Little Pieces is a “subjective retelling of events,”

21 § and he acknowledged embellishments and outright falsehoods. Author Frey also stated he

22 | originally submitted A Million Little Pieces to Random House, lnc. for consideration as a work

23 } of fiction, but that it was rejected, and that Random House, l_nc. and Doubleday & Company, Inc.

| to publish A Million Litle Pieces as fiction or non-fiction even afier they purchased the book,

| indicating Random House Inc. and Doubleday & Company, Inc. knew or should have I\nown A
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1 ¥ Million Little Pieces was 10t a trué and‘ll'c'o-nés-l ;\t;ﬁ of hon- u:uon Dnnna {he lelccas(, Opmh
2 § Wiafrey appmred via telephone and supposted author Frey and his memoir. Ms. Winfrey's
continucd support enabled A Million Little Pieces to remain at the top of the bestseller fists and

Random Hause, Inc., Doubleday & Company, Inc. and author Frey to rcap additional untold
profits.

' 27 On a January 26, 2006 re-appearance on The Oprah Winfrev Show, author l"rcy
was confronted by the formedy supportive Ms.Winfrey who said she felt “duped™ and believed

(72 ]

the author “betiayed millions of readers® by making up clements of his life. Ms. Winfrey noted

.that her staff had been alerted 1o possible discrepancies in author Frey's book, only 1o be assured

10 § by Random House, Inc that the memoir was tiue, precipitating her support on the Lamy King

i Live show. Commenting on the Smoking Gun expose, author Frey stated “Most of what they

; wrote is pretly accurate.” Author Frey said he had made up many of the details of his life and had
created a bad-guy portrayal of himself as a “coping mechanism.” He also stated "I made a lot of
mistakes in writing the book and promoting the bock.* Pressing farther, Ms. Winlrey asked if he
made up the material because j( helped him cope or because he thought it would help sclf books.

| Author F tey responded, "Probably both.™ Frey's admissions cast doubt on the truthfulness of

j cach and every page.

28.  Also.on the January 26, 2006 Opcah Winfrev Show, publisher Nan A_ Talese,

| representing Random House, Inc. and Doubleday & Company, Inc. tofd Ms. Winfrey that

20 Raandom House and Doubleday editors who read the
21

A Million Little Pieces raised no questions
about its many incredible elements and that jt received lepal veuting. She acknowledged A

22 | Miltion Little Pieces had not been fact-checked and that future copies would carry a disclaimer
informing consumers of the book’s fi ctional nature.

29, Alsoon January 26, 2006, motivated by the blatant admissions of fraud and

| neglq,ence made by author Frey and Random House, Inc. representative Nan A. Talese on The
26 _ Oprah Winfrcy Show, Random Housc, Inc. and Doubleday & Company, lnc. issucd a press -

I | telease accepting responsibility for representing A Million Little Pieces 10 be a memoir rather

Class Action Complaint
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g
19
20

|

than a woik of fiction. (Sce “Neivs front Doulileday & Anchor News™ press release; allachied- "~} 7 -

hereto as Exhibit “A”). In part, the press release reads: “(i]t is not the policy or stance of this
company that it doesn’t mattcr whether a book sold as nonfiction is true,”
V.
FACTS REGARDING DEFENDANTS' UNLAWFUL CONDUCT
30.  Author Frey fraudulently represented his book A Million Little Picces to be a true

and honest work of non-fiction at personal appearances, in print and on televison, including, but
not limited to The Oprah Winfrev Show. _

3L Random House, Inc. and Doubleday & Compaﬁy. Inc. raudulently represcnted
and promoled the book A Million Little Pieces to be a true and honest work of non-fiction, on the
book’s cover, through i)ﬂ:ss Kits, prom'olions, press releases and various other miedia channcls,

sncluding but not limiled to, the New York Times, USA Today, Amazon, Barnes & Noble and

other besl—seilers lists.
VL.
CLASS ALLEGATIONS
32 Plainti{fs brings this action, on behalf of themselves and all others similarly

situatéd, as a class action pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 382 and
California Civil Code Section 1781. The Class which Plaintiffs seeks to represent (“The Plaintiff
Class™) is defined as follows:

All consumers in Californiz who purchased the book

A Million Little Pieces from the (ime it was initially published

through thie present (the “Class Period™).

33. Excluded from the Class are Defendants in this action, any entity in which
Defendants have a controlling i-nlcresl, any officers or directors of Defendants, the legal
representalives, heirs, successors, and assigns of Defendants, and any judiciat officer assigned to
this matter.

34. Plaintiffs reserve the right, upon completion of discovery with respect 1o the

scope of the Class and the Class Period to amcnd thie definitions set forth above,
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35,7 The meémbers of the Class are so nurterous and éebgﬁii)ﬁizhllf diverséthat ~

| joinder of all of them is impracticable: Plaintilfs believe, and therefore aver, that there are more

I

than tens of thousands of members of the Class within Califoria and a multiple thereof

| nationwide.

36. Plaintifls, who are members of the Class as indicated, have suffered harm are

conmilied to pursumg this action, and have retained competent counsel experienced in class
| action litigation and in Imgatlon of this nature. Accordingly, Plainiffs are adequate

| representatives of the Class because they have the same interests as all the members of the Class,

LT U - LY. T

their chims are typical.of the ctaims of the members of the Class, and they will fairly and

] gt L — L ————] el gt e

| adequately protect the interests of the Class.

37. There are questions of law and fact conimon to members of the Class that

| predominate over any questions af¥ccting any individual members-including, inter alia, the
following:

(@) Whether Defeadants” faise and/or misteading statements of fact and

' concealment of material facts, to the Class and the public were likely to deceive the Class and the

public;
(b}  Whether Defendants’, by theic conduct as sel forth herein, has engaged in
5 unfair, deccpm'e untrue, or misleading statements about lhe (ru(hl'u!ness of A Million Litdle

| Picces;

(c)  Whether Defendants’ conduct caused damages for which Defendants are

| tiabie; | |

| (d) Whether, as a result of Defendants’ misconduct, Plaintifl'and the Class are
entitied to damages, restitution, injunctive, equitable and other reliel, and the amount and natare

! of such relief. - .

38.  The likelihood that individual members of the Class will prosecute separate and

| individual actions is remote due to the relatively small — atbeit substantial in the aggregate —

) actuat and potential damages fo be suffered by each member of the Class com pared (o the fosscs

=9- o -C!n_sActf'oaCo&-plaim
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i8 FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(AY Defendants - Violations of the Consumer
19 Legal Remedies Act - Injunctive Relief Only)
20 AL Plaintiff incorporate by reference all previous pacagraphs of this Complaint asif
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f suflcred by the Class as a whole compared to the burden and expense of prosccuting litigation of

2% ]

{§ this nature and magnitude. Plaintilf envisions no difficulty in the maﬁagemcnt of this action as a
I Class Aclion,

‘39. For the reasons stated above, a Class Aclion js superior 10 other available
| miethods for the fair and eflicient adjudication of the controversy.

VIL.

PRIVATE ATTORNEY GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

e o~ N o A W

40.  Plaintiffs assert claims in this action as a private atlomey general on behalf of
2 5 inembers o-flhc general public residing within the State of California pursuant to California
Business and Professions Code section 17204 in order to enjoin defendants from engaging in the
| unfair, unlawful and deceptive business practices alleged in this Comptaint and 10 require
Defendants to setup a restitutionary account (o disgorge and restore (0 the members of the
general public residing within the State of California all monies wrongfully obtained by

| Defendants through their unlawful business practices. A private atiommey general action is

15 § necessary and appropriate because Defendaats have engaged in the wrongful acts described

16 § herein as a peneral business practice.

2] §f fully sét fosth, and further alleges as follows. This cause ol action is brought on behalf of

22 k Phaintiffs and the Class against 2l Defendants.

23 | 42 The Consumer Legal Remedies Act, Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1750, et seq. (the "Act),
24 fl provides California ;:onsumers with a comprehensive procedure for redressing Defendant™s

25 § violations of various statlulory rights.

26 43, Defendants® miscepresctation of A Million Litle Pieces. which is a "good”

27 | under section 1761 (), as a true and honest work of non-fiction hs violated, and continues io
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L

“violate, the CLRA in at least the ft.)ll_ou.i't;g- lespa-‘(-:lé:

' (a) - In violation of section 1770(2)(2) of the CLRA, Defendants’ have
misrepresculc-d the sponsorship, approval or ccni-ﬁg:ﬂﬁon of the goods or services in question;
| {t) lIn violation of section 1770(a)(5) of the CLRA, Defendants’ acts and

| practices constitute represcntations that the goods or services in question have approval;

! chamctcrisiics, uses or benefits which they do not have or that a person has spon%hip,

| approval, status, afliliation, or conncction which he or she does nol have;

(c) Inviolation of section 1770(a)(7) of the CLRA, Defendants' acts and
§ practices constitute representations that the goods or services in question are of a patticular
standard, quality or grade, when they are not;
' (d) - In violation of section 1770(a}(9) of the CLRA, Defendants’ acts and
practices constitute the advertisement of £oods in questions without the intent (o sell them as
adverlised;
(¢) Ia violation of section 1770(a}(16) of the CLRA, Defendants’ acts and

practices constitute representations that the subject of the transaction has been supplied in
‘accordance with previous represcatations when it has not.

44, By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiffs and Class members have beea irreparably

harmed, entitling them to both injunctive reliefand restitution.

45. Pursuant to section 1782 of the Act, Plaintiffs notified Defendants in writing,

dated January 27, 2006, of the particular violations of section 1770 of the Act. Plainti{ls

" § demanded Defendants reclify the actions dcscribed above by providing complete monetary refief,

| agrecing to be bound by their legal obligations and give nolice to all af; fected customicrs of their

§ Defendants’ principal places of business.

46. If Defendant fails to respond to plaintiff’s demand within 30 days of the letter

| pursuant to section 1782 of the Act, Plaintiffs will amend this Complaint to add claints for actual,

| pucitive and statutory damages. Plaintiffs are al}cady entitled 10 the reliefset forth above, along

-t - Class Action Comglaini
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with costs, attorneys® fees and any other relief which the Court deems proper.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(All Defendants - Unlawful Business Practices -
Violation of Business and Professions Cade Section 17200)

47. -Plaimiﬂ's incorporate by reference all previous paragraphs of IhE Compiainl asif
f fully set forth, and further alleges as folfows. This cause of action is brought on behalf of

| Plaintil¥s and the Class against afl Defendans.

| 48. Plaintifis assent this claim against Defendants for unlawfirl business practiccs
| pursaant to California Business and i‘rol‘css‘ions Code Sections 17200 ¢ seq. which prohibits oll -
- ualawful or unl‘ni% business practices and/or acts. These statutes are liberally construed to protect
Califomia consumers.

e 49, Plaintiffs asserts their claim as a member of an agprieved class of persons who
15} have expended funds that Defendants should be required 16 reimburse under the restitutionary

14 F remedy specified in Business & Professions Code section 17203,

i5 50. Defendants represented A Million Little Pieces to be a true and honest work of
i& | non-fiction, which it is not, n-:ndeﬁng Defendants’ representations unfair, untrue, misleading .
i7 § andfor likely to deccive Plaintiffs, members of the Class and the general public.

i& 51. Defendants’ practices deceived consumers who trusted Defendants’

representations that A Million Little Pieces is a true and honest work of non-fiction, —which itis
aol. As such, Defendants® representations are unlawful and constitute an "unfair business

b practice ' _

52 By acting as alleged herein, Defendant employed unconscionable commercial

| practices, deception, false ad verlising, false promises and misrepresentation to lure consumers to

§ purchase A Mitlion Litile Pieces.

33.  The practices of the Defendants have injured Plaintif¥s and members of the Class
| by causing them spend money on a book they-otherwise would not have purchased, and/or in the

alternative, by decreasing the value and enjoymenl of the purchased book.

-12- . Classi\cl'iou_Cmn.pl:lial
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s The uﬁlawful acts and pr'u:uccs of Dcfcndanl as alleged above conslitute unla\\ ful
| business practices within the me:mmo of California Business and Professions Code Section

t 17200, er 5¢q.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(Alt Defendants - Violation of Business and Professions Code Section 17500, ef seq.)

35.-  Plaintiffs incorpomtc by reference all previous paragraphs of this Complaint as if
7 { futly set forth, and further alleges as l‘ollows This cause of action is brought on behalf of

& § Phaintilfs and the Class against all Defendants,
56. During the class period Defendants have committed acts of untrue and misleading
| advertising, as defined by Business and Professions Code section 17500, by engaging in acts and
: practices with intent to induce consumers to purchase A Million Little Pieces. The following acts

and practices, among others, created a likelihood of confusion and misunderstanding in

connection with the sale of A Million Liule PICCCS'

(@)  Author Frey fraudulently represented his boaL A Million Little Pieces to be

| a true and honest work of non-fiction at personal appearances, in print and on televi ison, including.,

but not limited to The Oprah Winfrey Show.
(b)' Random House, Inc. and Doubleday & Company, Inc. represented and
pron‘:otcd the book A Million Liule Pieces to be a true and honest work of non-fi tction on the

book $ cover, through press kits, prometions, pn:ss releases and various other media channels,

| including but not limited to, the New York Times, USA Today, Amazon, and Bames & Noble

2] ; best-sellers lists.

2 57. Plaintiffs and other members of the Class relied on and were deceived by

23 Defendants® false and deceptive advertiscments and praclices as set fonh above, and as a direct
24 §

| and proximate resul t of the aforementioned acts, Defendants rcccned and continue to hold ili-
25 |
26 |
27 ! imposition of a constructive trust over, and restitution and disgorgement of; the monies collected
28

golten gains belonging 10 Plaintiff and members of the Class.
53. 1n addition to the refief requested in the Prayer below, Plaintiffs seek the

<13 - _ Class Action Complaing
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and pmﬁts r&.l.l.ized bs'- Defenda-nls, and each of them, as well ag injunctive relief, including an

| order requiring them to ceasé from false and misleading 5&\'enising of A Million Liule Pieces.

I FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
f (All Defendants - Negligent Misrepresentation)
4 59, Plaintifls incorporate by refcrence all previous paragraphs of this Complainlas.il'
5 § fully set forth, and fusther alleges as follows. This cause of action is brought on behalf of
6 § Plaintiffs and the Class against afl Defendants.
7§ 60. Defendants recklessly or negligently misrepresented or concealed facts relating to
8 the fictional nature of A Million Lime Pieces am'! represented it as a true and honest work of non-
9 fiction.
10 : 6L, The facts misrepresented or omitted by Defendants were and are material,
i1 62. Plaintiffs and other members of the Class, believing Defendants’ representations

that A Million Little Pieces was a true and hanest work of non-fiction, and without means to
13 4 know otherwise, reasonably relicd upon Defendants' misrepresentations, omissions and other
14 pmc;lices, diccctly or indirectly, and purchased said bool. . _
is 63. Plaintiffs and the other members of the Class have thereby' been damaged, the -
16 § exact amount of which is presently unknown, but is capable of being ascertained. _

7 . 64. As aresuli of Dcfendanls_‘ practices as set forth herein, Defendants are liable to

8 ¥ Plaintifls and the other members of the Class for compensatory damqges, interest and costs.

i9

20 ' FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

fl 65. Plaintifts inco;pomtes by reference ajt previous paragraphs of this Complain asif
;f fully set forth, and further allcga as follows. This cause of action is brought on behall of

“ Plaintiffs and the Class against all Defendants, '

“ 66.  Defendants carvied out 2 finudulea scheme in which they made representations

2 that A Million Little Pieces was a true 3m_1 .honcsl l\\ork of non-fiction, including, but not limjted
36 10, through the foll-ou.ing mcdia; ' - )

;; (@) tn the February 3, 2003 edition of the New Yok Observer, author Frey

-4 T ~Class Action Compfatai | -
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[ statesof A Million Little Picces, "AHl that matters is what the feelings arc and what the events

3% ]

| are.” "l's not about all this trickery. When § think about writing, I have 2 very simple formula:

(PP

| Where was 12 Who was I with? What happencd? And how did it mate me feel? Those are the

4 § only important things...” In reaction to mention of other popular authors, Frey states:"f think my
f. approach to telling 2 story couldn’y be more different than theirs is." I think they're full of bells
d and whistles and tricks and being cute and being ironic and being alf this shit, To be honest, |
7 § don't understand it. It's not how 1 think or how1 feel._™..

(b)  ln the Aprif 4, 2003 issuc of the national magazine Entertainment Weekly,
i author Frey spoke of the value truth brings to his book, stating: “Books about addicted people are
often written in a way that makes them sound cool...and it's not cool or fun or'glorious or
romantic, I¢'s just awful... [w]hen I wrote the fast words, 1 burst out in tears for about an

hour...[jJust bawled at my desk.” Aiding in Frey’s misrepresentation of A

E Million Little Picces
13 % was Frey's Random House, Inc. cditor, Sean McDonald, who discussed author Frey’s memoir,

stating "His book is not Just nouthing off.” he says, "which is what James can do in interviews,

And cleadly, there's some fear that people would (reat the book the same way, which would be

terrible.”

7 (c)  lathe April 21, 2003 edition of the Chicago Sun-Times, author Frey stated

18 f of criticism of A Million Little Pieces and its truthfulness,*f didn't sct out to be anything but a

4 # greal writer. | don't care if somebody calls me a “literary bad boy' and I don't care ilthey don't. It's
20 § 'not any of my concern. People can say whatever they want about mc. And 1 kaowihat's gonna
21 ¥ happen, and I'm fully prepared for it to happen. My concern is wha | do when I sit down aad }
work. And aiy concemn is if I can Took myselfin the mimor when I wake up in themoming. And
23 oy concern is if I make my family and my wife and the people | work with proud of me. Beyond
2 that, [ don't give a 5. |
25 (d)  Inthe May 6, 2003 edition of the Cleveland Plain Dealer, author Frey

26 stales;-"The publisher contacted the people | wrote about in the book," he said. “All the evenls
depiclc_d tn the book checked out as factually accurate. § changed people's names. 1 do believe in

o) b T "ClasquionComplaiut
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f the anonym:l) parl o AA. The on]) Ihm asl chanﬂed were aspects of peoplc. !hal m:;:hl RV eal

their identity. Otherwise, it's all lrue.”

(¢) InaMay20, ZOOJ tnterview published in the Los Angcles Times, author
i I~rey s:nd of his memoir, “I was trying to keep it as honesty-based as possible.” "I don't think

anyonc's written about detox the way | have.” “Maybe other writers have forgotten how awful it is
6 ! or maybe they’re worricd that if they write aboui how awful it is, it'll tum people off” *“When you
7 3 detoxily yourself, you throw up constantly. You're sick, constantly. Your body is an utter disaster.

;
i 1 tried 10 write what 1 experienced.” When he sat down 10 write A Million Litte Pieces, he

‘# explained, !hc trend toward irony was at its height, but it wasn't an approach he wanted (o follow.

1n f “I think the best fiterature, the best writing, is honest and true.® He wrote the memoir, in some

Hi || ways, lie explained, to honor the people who'd been in rehab mlh him, many of whom have since

i2 # dicd from the consequences of their addictions. "You have 10 be earnest and sentimental to do
13 ff that”

4 4 () Inthe July 27, 2003 edition of the Minneapolis Slar Tribune, Random |

i3 § House, Inc. editor Nan A. Talese defended the truthfulness of A Milllon Little Pieces, stating,

16 { “You have to remember when someone is writing in the first person, itis their memory as they

i7 § recall it* "And memory is very selective; there's no such thing as the whole story. If they took a

18 4 lie-detector test it would probably be true, butif that person had a witness all the way through,

19 4§ maybe it didn't eaactly happen that way. But that's how they see it Talcse also stated, "Our

20 J lawyers are very, very careful.”
2i (&) Inlate 2005, author Frey published a message to individuals critical of A
22 £ Million Little Pieces and its truthfulness on his Biejimindustries.com web site: "Let the haters

- 23 {f hale, let the doubiers doubt, 1 stand by my book, and my life, and 1 won't dignify this (sic) with
24 § any sort of further response.” '
25 (k)  Onthe October 26, 2005 episode of The Oprah Winfrey Show, author Frey

26 § stated, ““If ] was gonna write a. book that was true, and | was gonna write 2 book that was honest,

27 § thenlwas gonna have to write about myselfin very, very negative ways.”

-16 - : Class Action Complaint




Case 1:06-cv-00669-RJH  Document 5-8  Filed 02/28/2006 Page 49 of 67

. ' i ] h
. .

ST

= 2

- T B T U SO
e

PRI _

@ On the Sariaey 11, 2006 episode 6f Larry Kine Live, author Frey
commented on A Million Little Pieces’ account of his tine in a Minncsota rehabilitation facility,
stating “As 1've said and I'll continuc 1o say, this is the true story of what | went through there.”
(G} Onlanuary 11, 2006, .R;mdom House, Inc. issued a press release stating
“We're standing by our author.” The press releasc also noted author Frey's memoir was “highly
personal™ and said that M Frey had represented to the publisher that the story was “true to his
recollections.™ .
(k) Asoflanuary 27, 2b06, Random House, Inc.’s web site promoted _;;t_
Miltion Little Picces as “an uncommonly genuine account of a life destroyed and a lifc
reconstructed.”
67. When Defecodants made their representations they knew them (o be false.
68, When Defendants made these false representations they made tl)‘:-m with the
intention 1o induce their customers 1o act in reliance on the representations made, or with the
expectation that their customers would so aclL

69. Plaintiffs and the Class purchased A Million Little Pieces based upon Defendants”

representations it was a true and honest work of non-fiction As such, Defendants’ representations
were material,

70. Defendants had exclusive knowledge of material facts not known to the plaintiffs
or the Class.

7L. Plaintifls were ignorant of the falsity ol Defendants® representations and believed

| them to be tcue. In reliance of these representations, Plaintiffs were induced to and did purchase '

§ A Million Little Pieces. Had Plaintiffs and the Class known the actual facts, they would rot have

purcha§cd the book. Plaintiffs and the Class’ reliance on Defendants’ representations was
justified because Defendants’ continued their fraudulent scheme of misrepresenting the true nature

of A Million Little Pieces throughout the Class Period.

72. As a direct and proximatc result of Defendants® fraudulent conduct, Dlaintiffs and

| members of the Class have suffered damages and economic foss in an amount to be proven at

-17- Class Ac;km Complaint
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3. In perpetrating the fraud alleged herein, Defendants acted in a witlfuf, wanton and ]
malicious manner, in callous, conscious and intentional disrcgard for the rights of Plaintiffs and
members of the Class, and with knowlcdgé that their actions and conduct were substaatially likely
1o vex, annoy and injure l’la.inlilTaud members of the Class. As a result thereof, Plaintiffs and
members of the Class are entitled 10 an award of punitive and exemplary damages against
Defendants, pursuant to California Civil Code section 3294, in an amount according 1o proof at
trial.

1X.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Phaintiffs demand judgment against Defendants as follows:
. A. Ordering that the action be maintaincd asa California state class action, certifying the
proposed class, and appointing PlainifTs and their undersigned counsel of _rcéord and any additional
class representatives accessary 1o adequately represent the class;
f B. Restoring and awarding Plainti{fs and Class members all ascertainable amounts,

} losses, refunds, including the purchase price paid for A Million Little Pieces, any statutosily

permissible damages, attomneys® fees, expenses, and costs;

C. Mandaling Defendants to disgorge and then restore andfor make restitution of any

moncy to the representative Plaintiffs and to each Class mcmber which may have been acquired by

, Defendants by means of its unlavwful coaduct atleged in this complaing;

D. Enjoining Defendants from engaging in similar unlaw ful acts or practices in the
future;

E. Awarding Plaintiffs and the other members of the Class damages in an amount
5 necessary (o compensate them fully for their losses, together with intercst;

F. For costs of suit ;md attorneys' fees;

G. For such other and further relief which the Court deems necessary, just and proper.

- 18- ) Chass Action Complaint
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X.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
=LAV FURJURY TRIAL

. Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury on all claims 56 trable,

f Dated: January 27, 2006 Respecifully submitted,

Hector G. Gancedo (SBN 132139)
Amy M. Boomhouwer (SBN 221869)
Christopher W. Taylor (SBN 236245)
GANCEDO & NIEVES LLpP

NGy

Christopher W. Taylor
144 W, Colorado Boulevand
Pasadena, California 91105

12 Tel: (626) 685-9800
Fax: (626) 685-9308
13§
AUomeys for Plaintiff
14 -

~19_
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AFFIDAVIT OF JEAN TAYLOR

i.Jean Egrlor, declare as follows based on personal knowledge and if called upon could
and would competently testify thereto:

1. Iam a plaintiff in the named action.

2, Loriginaily commenced this action in the proper county or judicial district
under Civil Code § 1780(c) because the entitics against whom { brought this action do

business in the county where the transaction at issue or a substantial portion thereof

3 Ocewered and at least some members of the Class reside.in this county.

Executed on this 27¢h day of Janilary, 2006,

b Toflone

{ﬂan Taylor “

= e

' !
AFFIDAVIT RE VENUE
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. AFFIDAVIT OF GARRETT HAUENSTEN

|

i
2
3
] . 4 Hlcould and wo
uld competen i .
S mpetently testify thereta:
&

X 7 Hunder Civi Cade '

A r Civil § 1780(c) because the eatities against whom I brought this action ¢

i messin the transacyi i i
g ffomes counfly where the Clion at issue or a substantiai portion thereof

] ” | occurred and at least some members of the Class reside in this co y

,l Executed on this 27th day of January, 2006, ‘:7 ’

Aapyrerprarrrad
LI P!
[\ B

1
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" ap
ORE S ipviugy
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AFFIDAVITRE VENUE -
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¥ " News frows &
Y Doubleday & Anchor Books @

The contsoversy over James Frey's A MILLION LITTLE PIECES has caused serious
coucern at Doubleday and Anchor Books. Recent interpretations of our previous
seatement notwithstanding, it is not the policy oc stance of this company that it doesn't
matrer whether a book sold as nonfiction is true. A noufiction book should adhere to

the facts as the author knows them.

It is, however, Doubleday and Anchor’s policy to stand with our authors when
ccusations are initially feveled against their work, and we continue to believe this is
right and proper. A publisher’s relaionship with an author is based to an extent on
trust.  Mr. Frey repeated representations of the book’s accuracy, throughout
publication and promotion, assured us that everything in it was true 0 his recollections.
When the Smoking Gun report appeared, our first respousc, given that we were sull
Lzarning the facts of the matter, was to support our author. Since then, we have

questioned him about the allegations aud have sadly come to the realization that a

number of facts have been altered and incidenes embellished.

We bear a responsibility for what we publish, 2nd apologize to the reading public for

.any unintentional confusion surrounding the publication of A MILLION LITTLE

PIECES.

We are immediately taking the following actions:

o We are issuing a publisher’s note to be included in all future printings of the book.
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* Junes Frcy s writing an 1uthors note thae will appear i all futare prmungs of the

book.

* The jacket for all future editions will carry the fine “With new nates fmm the

publisher and from the author™

. Although demand for the booL remains lunh we are not currently eeprinting or

fulﬁllmfr orders uniil we m‘tkc the above changes.

* The publisher’s note and author’s note will be posted prominendy on the

randombhiouse.com website, -

* The publisher’s note and author’s note will prompily be sent to booksellers for

inclusion in previously shipped copies of the book.

« An advcrtlsement concerning these developments will appear in nauoml and

trade publucattons i the nexe few days.

David Drake
VP and Director of Pablicicy
Doubleday Books

ddrake@rndomhousc.com

212/782-9001

Russell Perrcank
VP aund Dircctor of Publicity
Anchor Books :

rperecault@nndomhouse.cam

2§2-572-2080

Doubleday aad Ancor Books ace ditbions of Random Haurse, fuc. = 1743 Broadway, New York, NY 10019
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_Arrmvoa PARTY WITHOUT ATTORHEY (Newes, State Bav mombel, and wddress) . FOR COURT USE oMLY
HiTistopie " 1A5E00 (GRRN,187254) , e
GRHCEDO & NIEVES, LLP. : ) )
144 West Colorado Boulevard CONFORMED €COPY
Pasadena, CA 91105 : R SFEORYE Ui D
veLeenonena  {626) 685-9800 saxmo {626) 685-9808 ALl S e Caun
ATTORNEY FOR Plainti€fs : .
SUPERIOR COURT OF CALFORMIA, COUNTY 0FLOS Angeles JAN 3 7 006
streerapoaess 111 North Hill Street
suanG sooress LOSs Angeles, CA 90012-3014 MLAs e Crape e Hp_n(er
IV A ZI CODE - “
sraucinmse CENTRAL _DISTRICT S s e - JepUily
CASENAME  HAUENSTEIN ET AL. vs. JAMES FREY, ET AL. D.GlLES
A= ¢
CiViL. CASE COVER SHEET €omplex Case Designation asemmaml 34 5568/
x I&J:':mi‘tued Is.Zmlte:l“ Counter Joinder
Amou Armou Fded walh first appearance by defeadant | suoce
exconds $25.000) $35000 . lss) (Cal Rules of Cour, e 1611) veer
) Hlems 1-5 below must be compleled {see mstruclons oa page 2)
1 Check one box below for the case type that best descrbes thes case.
Auto Tort Coatract L Provigionally Complex Civil Litigation
Aurlo (22) - . Breach of contractivaranty (06) {Cal. Rules of Court, rules 1800-1812)
Unisured molonst (46) Collectrons (19) .. i AntinusyTeade reguiaton (03)
Other PIPDIWD (Personal InjuryiProperty Inswance coverage (18} ' Conskuchon defect (10)
OamageMronglul Deiath) Tort Other contract (37} . Mass tod (40)
Asbestos (04) Real Properly ) Secunbies iugabion (28)
Product kabity (24) 1 Emnent domamilaverse - . EnviconmentalTonc tast {30}
Medical malpractce (45} condemnation (14)  lasueance coverage dauns ansing fom the
Other PIPDWD (23) Wrongful evickon (33) above ksted provisonally complex case
Hon-PEPDIWD (Othed Tort + Other real properly (26) ypes (41)
X Busmess tofunlar busmess practice (07}  Uatawhd Detainer Enforcement of Judgment
Crvt nghts (08) : " Commerciat {31) * 777 enforcement of pdgment (20)
Defamation {13) Resstentsal (32) MisceNaneous Civil Complaint
X Froud {16) Deugs (38) T RKCOQeN
Inteflectua! property (19) Judiclal Review . Qiner cormplanl {nol specified above) (12)
Prolessonal neghgence {25) * Asset lorferture (05) Miscellaneous Civil Pelition
Other non-PUPTIWO tord {35) . Petion ce arbiration award (11) Pacaecstwp and comporaie governance (21)
Emplayment * Wit of mandate (02) "7 Other peutian fnot speciied above) (43)
Wreongful lermeation (36) * Other pudiceat review (39) T
QOther eqiplayment {15)
2. This case X 5 iswol  complex under rule 1800 of the Caldornia Rules of Court. If the case s complex, fark the
faclors equinng exceptional udicial management.
a x Large nutnberof separately represented partes d X Ladge number of wilnesses
b x Extensive moton prachice ising dficull ornovel € | Coordination with relaled acticas pending inone o more cowts
issues that will be tune-consuming to resolve # olher counties, states, or countoes, or n a federal court

¢. x Substantal amount of documentary evidence . % Substantal postudgment judicial supension

3 Type of remedies sought {check a¥f that apply)-
a x monetary b nonmonelary: declaralory or inunctivérefie!l ¢« puniive
4 Number of causes of achon {specdy}- Five i
S TMuscase x 5 ssnol 2 class action sut.
6 Ifthere are any knowa related cases, file and serve a notice of retated case. {You may use form CM-015).

DOate” January 27, 200 @‘:W__
Y o} woi WX g T y (33
__ {SIGHATURE OF PARTY OR ATTORNEYFOR PARTY)

vPE OR PRIAT ALY
NOTICE”’

« Plaaldl must fite thus cover sheet with the first paper fled i the achon or proceedmyg (except small dawms cases or cases fled
under the Probate Code, Famity Code, or Wellare and lastitutons Code) (Cal. Rutes of Coun, nsle 201.8 )} Fadwe 10 ile